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1. To receive and consider the Consolidated report including, a. Annual report of the Board of Directors 

3. To receive and consider Company's audited Annual Financial Statement for the year ended 30  June 2020, together with the Auditor's Report.4. Release from liability of the members of the Board of Directors.5.  To appoint Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the meeting until  the conclusion of the next meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and  authorize the Directors to determine the Statutory Auditors' remuneration.6. To elect new Directors and re-appoint Directors of the Company retiring by rotation.7. To approve the draft Membership and Distribution Rules.

2. To approve the Directors' Remuneration, set out in the Company's Consolidated Report.
 b. Corporate Governance Report c. Directors responsibility Statement  d. Certificate by Company Secretary 

THE AGENDA
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“FINANCIAL YEAR AND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Article 76 of the Constitution”

2nd RESOLUTION:

1st RESOLUTION:Adoption of the Report of the Board of Directors.It was RESOLVED THAT the Report of the Board of Directors, as submitted to the Annual General Meeting, including the Corporate Governance Report and the Directors remuneration report and the Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board of Directors be and hereby is accepted.
Adoption of the audited accounts for the financial year 2020.It was RESOLVED THAT the audited accounts for the accounting period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, as submitted to the Annual General Meeting by the Board of Directors, be and are hereby adopted.
The Company shall close its books on the 30 June of each year. The Board of Directors shall from time to time, in accordance with the Companies Act, cause to be prepared financial reports consisting of the audited annual accounts, the Board Report and statements. The audited accounts shall consist of a statement of financial position, a statement of comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of cash flows and explanatory notes. A copy of every statement of financial position (including every document required by law to be annexed thereto) which is to be laid before the Company in General Meeting, together with a copy of 

RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
the Auditor's report. The accounts shall be sent to members not less than twenty one (21) days before the date of the general meeting.3rd RESOLUTION:Release from liability of the Members of the Board of Directors.It was RESOLVED THAT the members of the Board of Directors be and hereby are granted a release from liability for the performance of their duties during and with respect to the financial year 2020, to the extent that their activities have been reflected in the audited annual accounts for the financial year 2020 or in the Report of the Board of Directors.4th RESOLUTION:Appointment of Statutory Auditors.It was RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 191(1) (a) and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,  (the “Act”), the members hereby ratify the appointment of MSD Mesotlo & Associates, whose registered office is at plot 145, unit 5F Lake View Office Park, Gaborone International Finance Park, Gaborone, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, to be held for the financial year 2019-20 on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors.
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It was RESOLVED THAT the Membership and Distribution Rules shall be changed to reflect the current commercial environment and for the company to be consistent with the  standard and "model" version of rules prescribed by the international federations, which COSBOTS is affiliated to.

5th RESOLUTION:Amendment of the Membership and Distribution Rules.
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6th RESOLUTION:Ratification of Auditors Remuneration It was RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 192(b) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, the remuneration payable to MSD Mesotlo & Associates the External Auditors of the company appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Annual Financial Statements of COSBOTS for the financial year 2020-2021, amounting to BWP60,000 (sixty thousand) exclusive of VAT in connection with the aforesaid audit be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED BY THE 
continued...

BOARD OF DIRECTORS



1st RESOLUTION:Adoption of the Report of the Board of Directors.We recommend that this AGM adopt the Board report including the corporate governance report, the Directors Remuneration report and Remuneration Policy for the Members of the Board as described in this report. 2nd RESOLUTION:Adoption of the audited accounts for the financial year 2020. We recommend that this AGM approve the audited accounts for 2020.
Release from liability of the Members of the Board of Directors.
3rd RESOLUTION:
We recommend that this AGM discharge the Members of the Board of Directors from their responsibility for the conduct of the Company's business with respect to the financial year 2020.4th RESOLUTION:Appointment of Auditors for year-end 2021.We recommend to this AGM to pass with or without m o d i fi c a t i o n  t h e  r e s o l u t i o n  t o  a d o p t  t h e recommendation of Directors to appoint MSD Mesotlo & Associates, whose registered office is at plot 145, unit 5F Lake View Office Park as the Company's auditors for the financial year 2021. Our proposal is thus to appoint new auditors and, in the process, rotate the existing firm of auditors. The rationale is to promote good corporate governance, maintain the independence of auditors and to obtain a fresher perspective about the affairs of the company. 

PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6th RESOLUTION:

5th RESOLUTION:Amendment of the Membership and Distribution RulesWe recommend that this  AGM approve the amendment of the Company's Membership and Distribution Rules to reflect the current commercial environment that the company operates in, and to comply with the provisions of the Code of Conduct, articles, rules and regulations of the international federation that the company is affiliated to.
Ratification of Auditors' remunerationWe recommend that this AGM  consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the resolution authorizing the Directors to determine the auditors' remuneration.

7





ABOUT THIS REPORT:The integrated report presents the performance of the Copyright Society of Botswana for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020.   Events that occurred after this date, that are of a material nature, are included in this report. The report outlines issues that relate to corporate governance and business operations, Director's remuneration and enterprise risk management as well as the corporate strategy and the business model. We have included commentary from the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). During the month of August 2020, the Board reduced the number of committees from five to three. The roles of some of the old committees were consolidated into the duties and responsibilities of the newly formed committee.FINANCIAL INFORMATION:The full set of audited annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 will be accessible to members from our registered office from Friday, 21 January 2021 upon written request to the Company Secretary. The annual financial statements will be made available to such members, free of charge. These annual financial statements were prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Mamlathan & Associates audited the annual financial statements. Its independent report to COSBOTS members is part of this report.

Signed on behalf of the Board:
APPROVAL OF THE REPORT: The board of Directors (the board) is responsible for the integrity and completeness of this report. The Board applied its collective mind in preparing and presenting the report and accordingly approved the report for publication. 

................................. ......................................                                  Mr. Patrick Setsiba                                             Mr. Mpho MotlhasediChairperson                                                         Treasurer 10 January 2020

ASSURANCE: COSBOTS operates in an established and controlled environment, which is regularly documented and reviewed. Risk management and internal control procedures exist to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that COSBOTS's risks are being controlled and its assets safeguarded. Mamlathan & Associates will provide external assurance on the financial information supplied in this report.

REPORTING FRAMEWORKS AND REGULATIONS: The preparation of this report was guided by the following reporting frameworks and regulations:  • International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) • Companies Act (“Act”)

COSBOTS INTEGRATEDREPORT 2020
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EXECUTIVE REPORT:I am pleased to present the COSBOTS integrated report for the year ended June 2020 to our stakeholders. This year has undoubtedly been a year of reckoning for the entire creative industry. At an individual level, members of the Board, management, members of COSBOTS and all other key stakeholders in the industry were all grateful that they were able to see the year through. This gratitude has caused many of us to open our eyes, soften our hearts and find purpose in everyday moments. Commercial activity in 2020 was marred by the negative effects of not just national but global economic growth, which may last for a considerable period, with a slow drawn-out recovery. The precipitous drop-in economic activity has had dire consequences for the financial well-being of the country's citizenry. The creative, tourism and entertainment sector of the economy has not been spared by this fall out. With cancelled exhibitions, conferences, entertainment events, live performances and workshops over the last-ten months, many artists are feeling the strain of the lack of economic activity that has resulted in  lost income and an uncertain future whose resultant domino effect is  a  marked increase in social unrest. With so much uncertainty in the economy, which resulted in job losses derailing careers and causing permanent shut down of businesses that were vulnerable in the first place, good leadership becomes imperative. No successful organisation would be where it is today without effective leadership.

Notwithstanding the headwinds experienced by the economy and the creative industry, we had to instill confidence during this period of setbacks. There are obviously instances where mistakes were made, and we had to admit where errors had occurred, seek proper counsel and listen. The goal being to learn to improve for purposes of driving future growth, development and innovation.  The Board has successfully kept the organisation afloat. However, even with their meaningful, impactful and profound contribution to this success, my fellow Directors have maintained their humility, and some have voluntarily decided to step back so others can step up to lead the further transformation of our organisation, even though their terms of office have not yet expired. 

Our company has been faced with its toughest challenges yet and this called for us as a Board to provide quality leadership. This required us to set the tone and the culture for the organization. As a collective we had to go through a process of creating and planning, securing resources, and looking out for and improving errors. We had to motivate our people to work together to achieve set organizational goals.

Mr Patrick Setsiba (Chairman)

CHAIRPERSON’s REPORT
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While things are tough right now, we as the Board are duty-bound to ensure that the company survives to serve the next generation of creators. We need to successfully fight through this pandemic. We are committed to do whatever it takes to fight for COSBOTS, its members and all its stakeholders.

Rather than celebrating all the amazing accomplishments of our songwriter, composer and publisher members who have during this period produced some of their best work on record, we are instead facing the devastating consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic. Botswana artists that have experienced sudden, unanticipated disruption to perform their work to the public, and without other sources of income, this has had a disastrous impact on their lives because of the pandemic.From the organisation's view point, the Board and Management are seeing more and more licensees who pay COSBOTS for the use of right holders works starting to feel the impact of the economic downturn. This is starting to translate into less revenue for COSBOTS and less money available for future distributions for our members. Management and staff have already been contacted by numerous licensees who are attempting to pay less, pay late or not pay at all.

It would be remiss of us not to address the failure to complete a major assignment of the Board, which involved the revision of the Company Constitution expected from us. In early 2019 the Board issued a public tender inviting reputable legal firms to submit proposals to review the current constitution. The tender was awarded in April 2020. The  Board similarly appointed an ad hoc steering committee to work in conjunction with the appointed law firm and oversee the terms of reference of   the review.  Regrettably the Steering committee was dissolved after failing to 

meet on numerous occasions to execute their mandate. The Board then took full responsibility of this process and after the lawyers had revised the current constitution, they made several attempts to call special meetings of members in an endeavour to adopt the constitution, which attempts were all in vain. This notwithstanding, we are still hopeful and remain positive that the approval of the revised constitution by members will be achieved in the foreseeable future. 
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During the period under review, the COSBOTS Board and Management embarked on its first ever country tour to give members updates on the state-of-affairs of the company and other pertinent issues. These included the operational status and financial position of the Company,  information on distribution principles, Royalty distribution – issues & improve-ment initiatives, updates on music monitoring, staff issues & recommendations, the status of the forensic audit, the work of the board sub-Committees as well as a brief on the proposed changes to the constitution and to obtain views and inputs from members for the constitution review. The Townhall meetings were held in Gantsi, Maun, Francistown and Gaborone which were a worthwhile endeavour, and they achieved great success. 
This has undoubtedly been an area of serious contestation since the current Board took office in August 2017. The major contentions related to members experience with delays in payment of royalties and disagreements on amounts involved and the formula used to calculate distribution values.One of the most significant contributors to the bad experience in customer service by members was due to lack of accurate information relating to usage of works, inadequate member information, which impacted negatively on the matching process causing unnecessary delays and failure to achieve a fair and equitable distribution. It is worth noting that key distribution funding decisions require the Board and management to have full knowledge and verifiable facts about our revenue collections each calendar month, quarter, half year and twelve-month period to determine accurate cash 

Having successfully implemented the Vericast system; a real-time musical monitoring platform, based on digital fingerprinting technology, we are able to obtain very accurate music usage data and information. What still lags are artist notifying their works and providing us with up to date member information necessary for processing of distributions. Thanks to Vericast, we have also decided to migrate from using the per-play allocation basis, which is based on the frequency of airplay, to a fair and more equitable basis, which relies on the duration of airplay enjoyed by each individual song. 

flow before finalizing the funding pool and processing hundreds of thousands of distribution files for payment processing. Due to the variable nature of collection of license fees and in some cases, the delays in users paying the fees and that distributions are made on a “cash basis,” (the money we collect bi-annually is paid out that same six-month period, less the costs of operation) as opposed to an “accrual basis” (money collected would be held and paid out a year later). There has been pressure on amounts available for distribution.
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Going forward, the Board and Management will  continue to sensitize the public about the role of the organisation and its mandate. In addition, we will inform them about the importance of complying to co py r i g h t  l aw  a n d  t h e  l i ke l y ramifications of continuing to use copyright works without express permission of the owners of the works.Together with all our employees, we will continue to work diligently to resolve problems from the past and to deal with the challenges of the present and future. During 2019-2020, we had begun to see the fruits of our labour. The major areas that we have been addressing are increasing liquidity levels, improving information quality and service delivery to our members, improving licensing and other income, and complying with rules, regulations, processes and procedures of the industry.The combination of these efforts has increased our cost-to-income ratio, successfully meeting our short-term goals as laid out in our strategic and operational plan.In the wake of a digital era, we intend to keep abreast of how these changes affect our business model. We also intend to innovate as much as possible to keep up with the rest of the world. It is also our intention to 13

maintain a steady increase in obtaining new members. Therefore, we are very optimistic about the prospects of COSBOTS.     The Board understands the importance of employees and their contribution to the long-term success of COSBOTS. As a result, the Board has put in processes that ensure staff engagement in order to understand their views and to have clear lines of communication across the structure of the organisation. This is achieved through the CEO's monthly all-staff briefings which are used as employee forum for exchange of views.  Management is also required to provide a strong program of engagement and well-being activities to employees.

OUTLOOK:OUTLOOK:



COSBOTS has over the period under review been operating in a challenging economic environment and required serious innovation on the part of the company's leadership to continue as a going concern and to be economically viable. To achieve this the Board and Management had to ensure that the company is run efficiently through the improvement of the financial and operational management aspects of the business, to ensure that they generate a return for its members.The period under review was overall a positive and successful year with an investment of the company's surplus cash holdings to enable the business to have a strong balance sheet and to withhold major operational shocks in the coming years.  We have been able to differentiate our offering and service from other CMO's in the region through innovation and digitization of our work processes including music monitoring and licensing. From what can be viewed as a torrid past, the company stabilized during the year with improved systems and processes.  The business enjoyed considerable year-on-year growth and has laid the foundations for a successful year ahead. Operational efficiencies strengthened through the period on the back of developments in key systems, which ensured that they are well placed to both service current members and attract new members going forwards.

We managed to realize our financial targets for the year, revenue growth was achieved and as was the case with keeping costs  within reasonable parameters, and to maximizing distributions to members. Revenue and Net Distributable Income grew in the twelve months to June 2020 by 41.1% and 16.3% respectively, costs increased both by 17.4% largely due to the write off of bad debts of P800, 000. Distributions to members enjoyed double-digit growth.  During this period our Chairman Mr. Tomeletso Sereetsi stepped down. However, during his tenure, the company stabilized from a challenged past. He led an initiative to protect the rights of creators and ensure that artists were paid equitably for the use of their creative works. Subsequently, Mr. Patrick Setsiba was appointed as Chairman to succeed Mr. Sereetsi following his resignation. 

 OFFICERS REPORT
Mr Lesego Kaelo Selotate
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The COSBOTS team, though small in terms of numbers,  is  comprised of motivated highly professional individuals. Management and staff are skilled individuals with industry expertise, which enables us to deliver on the goals and targets set by the Board.

The year witnessed a range of new digital systems and application to improve the experience for artists and users alike. The systems introduced had to provide the building blocks for new technical developments and launches in the future. The investment in our IT services will in future enable faster and more efficient processing of distributions and will improve the way we serve our 2400 members.In the financial year under review, many of the local private broadcasters experienced tremendous strain and muted performance due to the declining advertising income. Other businesses in the country have also come under severe pressure, inhibiting their ability to sustain the payment of license fees. This notwithstanding, the board and management have focused on the optimization of the company's operational processes to enable us to be more efficient and effective.

In the past two years, we  have also been concen-trating on training and developing our staff to serve our customers, and to meet our members'  needs. It must be noted that this is an on-going process. I am very proud of the team of employees that we have, and I believe they are ready, willing and able to meet the needs of all our stakeholders, especially those of our members.To ensure continuity of service in the future, we have developed a comprehensive succession plan that will ensure that all our stakeholders will continue to receive the service that they desire and deserve. We have also equipped our team with tools that are designed to meet our members' needs which are innovative and convenient to help us generate business and better royalty payments through our existing customer base, and new customers as well.
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There was a significant surge in the  license and royalty income collected in 2020, which amounted to P15, 8million compared to P11,3 million in 2019. The distributed royalties for the period under review was P4,6million compared to royalties of R3,5 million in 2019. The increase in licensing income and the overall distributions to our members was mainly driven by the 

public broadcaster paying for past disputed license fees. This caused  the prior years' royalties to be accounted for in the year under review and being added to the distribution pool, thus improving payments to artists. Even with the bad debt write-off of P800,000, our distribution pool remained robust for this year. 
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In as much as we have been driving revenue growth, we have also instituted various cost-control measures to generate better royalty income for our members. This initiative has provided us with moderate success and enables us to reduce our cost-to-income ratio from 63% in 2019 to 56.4% in 2020.

Based on the current operating environment and the challenging trading climate, growing the existing customer base through increasing the number of licensees is going to be an uphill battle. However, with a robust strategy, realistic and achievable goals and improved efficiencies, COSBOTS can adapt to remain a sustainable enterprise into the future.We would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the team that worked and continues to work tirelessly with the Board in reaching every milestone thus far. The Board remains committed to playing an integral part in safeguarding all the tangible and intangible assets of the business, and to always act in the best interest of the company, which will ultimately benefit the COSBOTS members and all its key stakeholders. As we navigate these trying times, we have every faith that the creative industry will rise again and become a formidable force in the not so distant future.
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MAIN EVENTS FOR During the period under review, numerous notable events took place, which optimized the business model and contributed to the operational and financial success of the organization. The Board and management zoned in on the following strategic areas of operations:
Maximising the generation of revenue through increasing the licensing of music users who traditionally did not have a COSBOTS license as this will  increase our market share. In addition, management embarked on an initiative to improve collections of invoiced amounts to ensure enough revenue collection and reduce bad debts and grow cash available for distribution.
COSBOTS' key performance indicator is the improvement of the cost to income ratio. So, in addition to maximizing revenue for purposes of improving the financial and operational performance of the company to obtain healthy surpluses for its members, management pursued cost containment by improving internal controls to ensure prudent financial management and maintenance of financial disciplines across the business. Over the last year, COSBOTS embarked on an initiative to introduce several various technologies to help modernize its operations and increase their efficiency. The first of such initiative was the implementation of the Music Monitoring System called VERICAST from (BMAT), which uses finger printing technology. This is a world-class monitoring service that has helped the company to improve matching and linking processes, to improve the quality and value of distributions. Today the company can monitor all five (5) local radio stations and the Television station operated by the Public broadcaster in real time. The undesirable member experience and less efficient distributions will now be a thing of the past. The company invested in Pastel Evolution that is 

COSBOTS' music repertoire library has up until recently been kept in physical compact disks. After procuring the VERICAST system, Management commenced an intensive project of converting the company's music library into a digital format. The digital files of the new library were then ingested into the Vericast System, to create a digital footprint on each musical work, and make it possible for the same works to be recognized by the monitoring system.
One major milestone for the organisation, after outsourcing the monitoring of music play to a world class technology provider, was to move from using per-play to per-second for Distribution 13. This system has proven to be the fairest of any distribution format.
COSBOTS executed a number of  reciprocal agreement during the year under review. These contracts were signed with collective management organizations (CMOs) in other territories that collect for the same right type(s), to collect on behalf of these organisation's members.  In fact, bilateral agreements were signed with CAPASSO, SAMPRA, SONY, WARNER and UNIVERSAL.

geared towards improving our accounting, Licensing and HR systems.
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Being a multi-disciplinary CMO, which currently licenses for music use only, COSBOTS will also collectively administer reprography and other rights in the text and image works sector as well as audio-visual works. The company has  recently admitted thirty (30) members from Reprography, with a total of 47 works being declared and registered. A significant achievement on the part of the organisation, we must say. 
During the year, COSBOTS introduced an inhouse member's funeral benefit scheme. The scheme is operated under the Social & Cultural Fund, for the benefit of members that are bereaved. We look forward to growing this fund to a point where we can give our members dignified send-offs when they pass on.
COSBOTS has been admitted as a provisional member by the International Confederation of Societies of Authors and Composers, (CISAC). CISAC is an umbrella organisation representing Authors' societies (Collective Management Organisation's) worldwide. The membership benefits include access to the tools available to members and expertise from the industry.
Following the challenges in employing multiple payment platforms, and the costs associated with paying royalties using multiple concurrent payment systems, COSBOTS has finally partnered with Botswana Post to use PosoMoney, their virtual money solution that provides mobile wallets as a form of  payment to royalty recipients. This partnership promises to bring tremendous value to the member experience and to efficiencies and cost effectiveness within the internal structures of the organisation. The solution will be convenient, and the most accessible facility for members since most of them have mobile phones and will easily access Post offices and 

Several Government ministries and departments have been engaged through a series of meetings and workshops.  The corporate communications department has also presented to fourteen (14) out of sixteen (16) Local Authorities for their broader edification on the work of COSBOTS, its systems and processes. Management has also revitalized the working relationship with the Ministry of Youth Empowerment Sports and Culture Development, working with their offices in almost all the Districts, ensuring fruitful working relations and better service provision to Artists.
A few events that took place during the year resulted in a negative public perception of COSBOTS. This resulted in a strained relationship between member activists, the Board and management. This also affected the relationship with key stakeholders. A team of Board members and management travelled across the country to increase engagement and c o m m u n i c a t i o n  w i t h  C O S B O T S  m e m b e r s . Management held a series of meetings with senior government officials, members of the legislature, the regulator and other key stakeholders and captains of the industry to rebuild trust and the reputation of the organisation. 

Choppies stores which are in most of the locations countrywide. 
The cementing and continued improvement of relationships with key stakeholders has been a major part of the organisation's plans this year as we continue to see our cooperation with the Department of Broadcasting Services, large retailers, hospitality establishments and restaurants improving with every day that passes. A significant proportion of music users and major right holders have been engaged through, radio, print, the online newsletter, workshops, bulk SMSes and social media platforms, as well as holding physical meetings, with a major emphasis on the COSBOTS value proposition.

20
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCE REPORT
The COSBOTS board observes all the tenets of good corporate governance by applying the fundamental principles of accountability, integrity, fairness and transparency in all its dealings with all the company's stakeholders. The Board composition as at 30 June 2020 was as follows:

COSBOTS LEADERSHIP
Mr Patrick Setsiba (Chairman)Date appointed: 25 August 2017

Mr Alfred Mosimanegape (Vice Chairman)Date appointed: 25 August 2017 Mr Mpho Motlhasedi (Treasurer)Date appointed: 25 August 2017 Mr Moletlanye Mphoeng (Board Member)Date appointed: 25 August 2017
21



Mr Game Bantsi (Board Member)Date appointed: 25 August 2017 Mr Tomeletso Sereetsi (Board Member)Date appointed: 25 August 2017 Ms S.B. Lesetedi-Keothepile (Ex-Officio Board Member)Date appointed: 27 November 2017

Mr Kopano Mantswe (Board Member)Date appointed: 01 December 2018 Mr Benjamin Mogotsi(Board Member)Date appointed: 25 August 2017 Ms Winani Sekani (Board Member)Date appointed: 25 August 2017

MEET OURBOARD MEMBERS
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Gosego Makhamisa (Music Licensing Manager) Letlhogonolo Makwinja(Head of Reprography) Masego Mbaiwa (Human Resources Officer)

Lesego Selotate (Chief Executive Officer) Onalenna Gaontebale(Documentation &Distribution Manager) Seeletso Lekgaba (Corporate Communications Manager)

COSBOTSMANAGEMENT
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COSBOTS has outsourced its finance functions instead of hir ing in-house accountants and bookkeepers to allow management to focus on the company's core competencies and make greater strides toward achieving its goals. Creating revenue is the primary focus of our business. Our finances are handled by a finance and accounting services firm that gives its utmost priority to managing the COSBOTS finance department.  Therefore, the finance department receives the same kind of focus as the rest of the business.
As is the case with many organisations within the country and elsewhere around the world, outsourcing various functions and departments has become an ordinary part of doing business. Legal services are no exception. COSBOTS legal needs have become diverse and vary significantly with  what they were during the formative stages of the organisation. The Board and Management took the view that if an in-house lawyer needs to spend time learning the laws, expectations, and paperwork associated with every issue the organization faces, bottlenecks would occur, and risks increase. It is well understood that as much as one lawyer with too many responsibilities can pose a liability, so can a lawyer with too few. It is important to be alive to the fact that it can be expensive to retain general counsel when legal services are unnecessary, for instance, during a period of slow licensing or stagnant growth. This uncertainty could hamper the organisation's ability to move quickly between routine business and pivotal moments that warrant mult iple  law yers.  A s  such,   the Board and Management resolved to outsource legal services. 
The Board has also outsourced the function of the company secretary, and she plays a pivotal role in the functioning of the Board. She ensures all Directors have full and timely access to information they need to perform their duties and obligations properly, and enables the Board to function effectively. She provides guidance and assistance by ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 
The Directors have collectively discharged their fiduciary duties within the context of the Companies Act, the COSBOTS constitution, Board charters and the Code of Ethics and Confidentiality policy.

As has been the case over the years and since the current Board took office in August 2017, the individual Directors have continued to discharge their fiduciary responsibilities to the company by acting in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of COSBOTS and all its stakeholders. 

Through these documents and processes, procedures and practices, the Directors contribute to the future sustainability of COSBOTS, enhancing long-term value creation for the company and its members, and ensuring that other key stakeholders, such as the Copyright office, employees and suppliers, benefit from the ongoing success of the organisation.The philosophy of Board leadership is premised on the principle that the role of the Board and Management teams responsibilities are two separate and distinct tasks. Consistent with this approach, the roles of the Chairperson and CEO are separate, with specific responsibilities divided between them to ensure a balance of power and authority. The balance ensures no one individual has unfettered powers of decision making and cannot dominate the Board's decisions. Only decisions of the Board acting as a unitary body are binding on the CEO. The Board retains full and effective control over the company, assuming overall responsibility for COSBOTS compliance with the applicable legislation and governance provisions.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT:FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS: COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS: 

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT: LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT: 

COMPANY SECRETARY :COMPANY SECRETARY :





VISION:
MISSION: 
CORE VALUES:

The Vision and Mission, and the strengthening and improvement of corporate governance are  an ongoing priority for management, with the aim of continuing sustainable growth and improvement of the Company's corporate values, to meet the expectations of all of its stakeholders, including its members and customers.   To be the best collective management  organization in the world. We empower creativity.

 2. Botho & Integrity: Humility, sound moral &   ethical principles. Honesty and trust are   central to integrity. Provision of service   with courtesy, politeness, respect and   consideration. 3. Transparency & Accountability: Openness   and responsibility in our dealings and   transactions with customers and   stakeholders. 4. Teamwork: Working collaboratively as a   group to achieve goals.

The Company considers compliance to be its highest priority, based on the following corporate principles. 

 1. Results Driven: We will be customer   focused, always working from the mind-set   of helping clients win.

An officer, Director, staff, and committee member, all have a fiduciary responsibility to avoid "conflicts of interest". However, where the Company conducts transactions with related parties such as its officers, directors, staff, and committee members, pursuant to the Code of Ethics, there is no harm to the common interests of the Company.  The same process applies with non-related parties. Transactions between the Company and officers,  Directors,  staff, and committee members that particularly compete with the Company's business operations or conflict with the Company's interests, require prior approval from, and after-the-fact reporting to, the Board in accordance with the Code. In addition, the Code stipulates that Directors with a special interest in a resolution of the Board shall not participate in such resolution.

At the Annual General Meeting of members held on the 18th January 2020 at 09:00, the Company was operating with the five Board committees that were created in 2018 and is following all the general principles of Corporate Governance.

BASIC VIEWS ONCORPORATE GOVERNANCE, CORPORATE PROFILE AND OTHER BASIC INFORMATION
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 BASIC VIEWS: BASIC VIEWS: REASONS FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:REASONS FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

DISCLOSURE BASED ON THE PRINCIPLES OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:DISCLOSURE BASED ON THE PRINCIPLES OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:VISION:
MISSION: 
CORE VALUES:



(2) Basic views and guidelines on corporate governanceAs set forth in “1. Company Objectives, Business Strategies & Business Plans.(3) Policies and procedures for determining the remuneration of top management and Directors as detailed below in “Section II. 

(1) Company objectives, business strategies  and business plans. (i) Corporate philosophy:  The Company has incorporated into   the fabric of its operations basic   Corporate Principles   • Corporate Responsibility to Society;   • Integrity   • Fairness
The Vision, Mission and Core Values, is published on the Company's website. All the Company's corporate activities are based on the Vision, Mission and core values.https://www.cosbots.com/home (ii) Business strategies and business plans:  In the Financial Year 2015, the Company   formulated and implemented the   corporate strategy covering the five   years to the end of the Financial Year   2020.From the Financial Year 2020, the Company will develop a new five-year business plan and strategy that will bring about fundamental structural reforms to realize a structural breakaway from a low net distributable amount environment. An outline of those structural reforms is stated in the Overview of Business of the FY2020 Annual Report.The impact of COVID-19 has generated many uncertainties in underlying conditions. COSBOTS will attempt to discern the impacts and proceed with deliberation towards formulating a specific midterm business plan for the upcoming period.

 (i)  Director and Executive Officer   Remuneration; Amount of   Remuneration, and Disclosure of Policy  on Determining Remuneration Amounts   and Calculation Methods”.(4) According to Policies and Procedures for the appointment and dismissal of top management and nominating a Director candidate within the Company, the Nomination and Governance Committee makes decisions for agenda proposals for the appointment or dismissal of Directors, while the Human Resources & Staff Welfare deliberates the Chief Executive Officer, Finance & Administration Manager and Legal Services and Compliance Manager's app-ointment and dismissal criteria, proposals for the appointment and dismissal of CEO, CEO succession plans, and other related issues. In the future, the newly formed Nomination, Human Resources and Remuneration Committee plans to conduct the consideration of and deliberation toward formulating specific criteria for the appointment and dismissal of Directors, Committee members, and members of the Executive Management team.(5) Reasons for appointments of Directors:The reasons for the appointment of Director candidates are presented in the Notice of theGeneral Meeting of members.Refer to Directors' Biographies:https://www.cosbots.com/our-team/
The items that require a resolution of the Board pursuant to laws, regulations or provisions of the Constitution, the items delegated to the Board by a resolution at a General Meeting of members, and certain necessary items related to business management, are resolved by the Board. Management is given the authority by the Board to make decisions relating to the implementation of the Board's decisions excluding any of the above matters. The Matters Reserved for The Board Policy stipulates the items that require a resolution of the Board, and the items that require reporting at the Board meeting. 27

FULL DISCLOSURE:FULL DISCLOSURE:

CORPORATE PROFILE AND OTHER BASIC INFORMATION:CORPORATE PROFILE AND OTHER BASIC INFORMATION:

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD:ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD:



 (i) Independence Criteria and Eligibility for   Independent Non-Executive Directors;The Company's criteria for evaluating the indepen-dence of Non-Executive Directors is set forth in the Finance Policy and Procedure Manual. (ii) View of the Appropriate Balance   between Knowledge, Experience and   Skills of the Board as a Whole and   Diversity and Appropriate Board Size;The Company's Board consists of ten (10) Directors. Of the ten (10 )Directors, one is an independent non-executive Director representing the Government of Botswana. The Company believes that Independent Non-Executive Directors can potentially make very insightful contributions at Board meetings and on other occasions based on their experience and knowledge as Attorneys-at-law, Accountants, and business people, and can sufficiently fulfil their duties as Directors. The Company will continue to build a structure that integrates diversity of knowledge, experience and capabilities by adding Non -Executive Directors in the future.  (iii) Analysis and Evaluation of the   Effectiveness of the Board;To improve the effectiveness of  corporate governance, the Company has tools and processes in place to annually evaluate the effectiveness of its Board through a questionnaire survey of all Directors. During Financial Year 2020, the Company intends on doing the Board evaluation which will include evaluating the effectiveness of the Board based mainly on the four elements “composition of the B o a r d  a n d  e a c h  co m m i t te e , ”  “ m a t te r s  f o r deliberation by the Board and each committee,” “oversight functions of the Board and each committee,” and “status of deliberations by the Board and each committee” from the perspective of enhancing the Board's oversight function in light of the changes envisaged in the company and the reduction from five committees to three committees in August 2020.

The Company will work towards strengthening corporate governance by further improving the effectiveness of the Board, including initiatives for major issues recognized through an analysis and evaluation of the Board. (iv) Director and Management Training;

 (v) Policy for Constructive Dialogue with   members

The Company carries out training for Members of the Board and Management, such as utilizing outside experts and external seminars, and providing opportunities to explain topics such as financial matters and corporate governance, to ensure that Officers appropriately perform their roles and duties.The Company provides Non-Executive Directors with the opportunity for dialogue with other members of Management and officers, to deepen their understanding of the Company's business. To facilitate a thorough discussion at Board meetings, the Company provides opportunities to prepare by distributing the agenda items of Board meetings and explanatory materials beforehand and conducting explanations in advance as necessary.
The Company regards constructive dialogue with all members and other key stakeholder to be essential from the perspective of sustainable growth and medium to long-term improvement of corporate values and has implemented various measures to promote such.
 1) Designation of a Director (Chairman of   membership committee) in Charge of   Dialogue with members, 2) Management, including the CEO,   Documentation & Distribution   Manager and the Corporate   Communications   and Marketing Manager,   conducts dialogue with   members. 28

THE SPECIFIC DETAILS ARE AS FOLLOWS:THE SPECIFIC DETAILS ARE AS FOLLOWS:



In addition to individual dialogues by each responsible department, senior management periodically meets with members and participates in group meetings held for  purposes of  br iefing members  on developments with the company. The Company also works to enhance dialogue using the Annual General Meetings of members and corporate briefings for potential members. Additionally, for members to further their understanding of the Company's business, the Company continuously works to enhance its website to disseminate more easily understandable information outside the Company.

At the Company, dialogue (meetings) with members is h a n d l e d  b y  t h e  d e p a r t m e n t  i n  c h a r g e  o f Documentation & Distribution (hereinafter referred to as “DD”) and supported by the Corporate Communications Department. These departments cooperate, to conduct various measures to promote an understanding of the Company by members, and communicate with the Licensing, Finance and Administration, Information and Technology and Legal Services, and Compliance departments.

Matters of concern for members are regularly reported (at least once each quarter) to Management, and a report to Management is discussed at management meetings. In addition, the content of dialogue with individual members is regularly r e p o r t e d  ( a t  l e a s t  o n e  e a c h  h a l f- y e a r )  to Management, depending on its importance. Moreover, Management gains a direct understanding of the views and concerns of members from their participation at group meetings with members, conferences and at the Annual General Meeting. The types of information to be disclosed, basic principles, responsible persons, departments in charge, disclosure process and other matters of the “ Pr ivac y  Pol ic y  and the Code of  Ethics  and `confidentiality Policy deal with Measures to Control member and other sensitive Information. In addition, company information is managed by thoroughly and clearly specifying its confidential classification in the employment contracts of each employee and the contracts of Non-Executive Directors, in addition to the legal provisions in the Company Constitution and the Companies Act.

Other Special Circumstances with Material Impact on Corporate Governance:The company could potentially fall into the trap of appointing Directors with very little knowledge of the implications of what they are doing, and often the Directors themselves may accept appointment without understanding what they are entering into. 

Many people may not know that the directorship title is associated with so many duties and responsibilities with corresponding risks that sometimes outweigh the financial benefits, status quo, networking, friendship etc. that attract people to such roles and this may have a material impact on Corporate Governance.

 Fiscal Year-end 30 June Type of Business Collective management Organisation -   RightsManagement Number of Employees as of the end Nineteen (19) of the Previous Fiscal Year Income as of the End of the Previous Fiscal Year Fifteen Million (P15M)
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MEASURES FOR COOPERATION AMONG INTERNAL DEPARTMENTS:MEASURES FOR COOPERATION AMONG INTERNAL DEPARTMENTS: MEASURES FOR EFFECTIVE FEEDBACK OF MEMBER VIEWS AND CONCERNS:MEASURES FOR EFFECTIVE FEEDBACK OF MEMBER VIEWS AND CONCERNS:

EFFORTS TO ENHANCE METHODS OF DIALOGUE:EFFORTS TO ENHANCE METHODS OF DIALOGUE: MEASURES TO CONTROL MEMBER AND OTHER SENSITIVE INFORMATION:MEASURES TO CONTROL MEMBER AND OTHER SENSITIVE INFORMATION:



ORGANIZATIONAL COMPOSITION AND OPERATION:
DIRECTORS:

MATTERS CONCERNING NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

 Organizational Structure Company with five committees

  by rotation which is 3 years Chairperson of the Board Chairperson Term of Office Stipulated in Constitution No term stipulated except for two directors retiring Maximum Number of Directors Stipulated in the Constitution Twelve (12)
 Number of Directors Ten (10)

ORGANIZATIONAL COMPOSITION AND OPERATION:
DIRECTORS:

MATTERS CONCERNING NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: Number of Non-Executive Directors Nine (9) Number of Non-Executive Directors Designated One (1) as Independent Directors

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION AND OTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SYSTEMS REGARDING DECISION MAKING, EXECUTION OF BUSINESS AND OVERSIGHT IN MANAGEMENT
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 Mpho Motlhasedi Musician       ✓ ✓ Game Bantsi Musician     ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Staffnurse B Lesetedi-Keothepile Ex Officio        ✓  representing  Government Tomeletso Sereetsi Musician  ✓     ✓ ✓
 Winani Sekani Musician       ✓ ✓
 Kopano Mantswe     ✓    ✓

 Name: Attribute Relationship with the company*    a b c d e f g Patrick Setsiba   ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓ ✓ Alfred Mosimanegape Musician       ✓ ✓

 Benjamin Mogotsi Author  ✓   ✓   ✓  Literary Works Moletlanye Mphoeng Musician       ✓ ✓

DIRECTORS' RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMPANY:

a. Print and publishing - representing authors of literary, artistic and musical works as well as  publishers in text- and image-based industries.
 i. Fine art, such as painting and sculpture  ii. Photography, such as documentary,  and photographic artworks iii. Illustrations, such as cartoons, diagrams   and maps  iv. Graft and applied art, such as jewelry,  ceramics and textiles  v. Design, such as graphic design  vi. Architecture  vii. Prints, such as engravings and woodcuts c. Folklore – representing artists in the field of  traditional knowledge and cultural expressions. d. Dramatic and theatrical – representing Writers  and dramatists, directors and choreographers,  scenic designers, actors and singers are involved  in the production of a dramatic work. e. Audio-visual and film – representing authors and  performers as creative collaborators, and 

b. Visual arts and photography – representing  rights holders for visual material. Visual material  takes many forms, including the following: 

31

 producers as financing partners in the video and  film making industries. 

g. Others
f. Music and sound recording – representing rightsholders of musical works being  songwriters, performers, composers and music  publishers as well as record companies.
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DIRECTORS' RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COMPANY:



Reason for appointment as Director -We expect that Mr. Setsiba will utilize his wealth of experience and extensive knowledge as a lecturer at Tlokweng College of Education, expert in the creative arts industry as a BQA accredited visual and performing arts assessor and moderator, a traditional song and dance activist as well as being a visual artist. These will provide strategic direction to the Board and the Company.
Reason for appointment as Director - We expect that Mr. Mosimanegape will utilize his wealth of experience in the industry as a guitarist, producer, sound engineer, author and song writer in the Board of the Company.
Reason for appointment as Director- We expect that Mr. Motlhasedi will utilize his wealth of experience in the industry as an author, composer and lyricist in the Board of the Company.
Reason for appointment as Ex-officio Director- We expect Ms. Lesetedi-Keothepile to utilize her considerable experience and knowledge obtained in the tenure as a senior civil servant at the Ministry of Investment, Trade and Industry, Registrar of Companies and Intellectual Property and being a part-time university lecturer to apply it in the company's Board. 
Reason for appointment as Director - Mr. Sereetsi will utilize his wealth of experience as a seasoned  music producer and composer and apply it in providing strategic direction to the company's Board. 
Reason for appointment as Director -  We expect that Mr. Mantswe will utilize his considerable experience as an IT specialist, a music producer and composer as well as a longtime member of the COSBOTS Board to apply it in providing strategic direction to the Company's Board.

Patrick Setsiba

Alfred Mosimanegape
Mpho Motlhasedi
Staffnurse B. Lesetedi-Keothepile

Tomeletso Sereetsi
Kopano Mantswe

Roles on the Board:   Executive    ✓

Roles on the Board: Nominations & Governance  ✓ Finance, Procurement & Audit ✓  Executive ✓
Roles on the Board:  Nominations & Governance  ✓ Membership ✓

Roles on the board:  Finance, Procurement & Audit  ✓ Human Resources & Staff Welfare ✓
Roles on the board:  Finance, Procurement  & Audit  ✓ Membership ✓

BUSINESS MANAGEMENTORGANIZATION                                       
Roles on the Board: Nominations & Governance  ✓ Finance, Procurement & Audit ✓  Executive ✓
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CONTINUED...



Reason for appointment as Director - We expect that Mr. Mphoeng will utilize his knowledge of human resources and industry practitioner, lyricist and composer to apply it in providing strategic direction to the company's Board. 
Moletlanye MphoengRoles on the Board: Membership ✓ Human Resources & Staff Welfare ✓ 33
Reason for appointment as Director - We expect that Ms. Sekani will utilize her 10 years work experience in the Company's Board. Like many Board members of COSBOTS Ms. Sekani is a legendary song writer and performer.
Reason for appointment as Director - We expect that Mr. Mogotsi will utilize his wealth of experience and extensive knowledge as a university lecturer and literary author to apply it in providing strategic direction to the Company's Board.
Reason for appointment as Director -We expect that Mr. Bantsi will utilize his considerable experience as a marketing executive,  music producer, composer and a community activist to apply it in providing strategic direction to the Company's Board. 

Winani Sekani
Benjamin Mogotsi

Game Bantsi

Roles on the Board: Membership ✓ Human Resources & Staff Welfare ✓

Roles on the Board: Nominations & Governance  ✓ Membership ✓

Roles on the Board:  Nominations & Governance  ✓ Human Resources & Staff Welfare ✓

DIRECTORS RELATIONSHIP      WITH THE                       COMPANY
 Executive Three  Nil  Three  Nil  Internal Director
   All Members   Full Time Internal Director  Outside Director  Chairperson   (# of Members)  Member  (# of Members)  (# of Members)    (# of Members) Finance,  Four  Nil  Four  Nil  Internal Director Procurement & Audit Nominations & Four  Nil  Four   One  Internal Director Governance Membership Five  Nil  Five  One   Internal Director Human Four  Nil  Four  Nil  Internal Director Resources & Staff Welfare

Directors: Members of Committees and Charpersons
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P. Setsiba  Y  Y          N       & Audit Governance    & Staff  (Y/N)             Welfare
 Name  Right to Concurrently Serves as a Director (Y/N)     Concurrently  Represent Executive  Finance, Nominations Membership  Human Serves as an   (Y/N)   Procurement  &   Resources  Employee
A. Mosimanegape  Y  Y          NM. Motlhasedi  Y  Y          NB. Mogotsi  Y      Y  Y    NM. Mphoeng  Y        Y  Y  NG. Bantsi  Y      Y    Y  NT. Sereetsi  Y    Y      Y  NK. Mantswe  Y    Y    Y    NS. Lesetedi-Keothepile  Y        Y  Y  NW. Sekani  Y        Y  Y  N

Concurrent Positions Held:

 Presence of Directors and employees who  N assist the duties of the Finance, Procurement  and Audit Committee (Y/N)
Audit & Supervisory Framework:
Matters relating to the independence of such Directors and employees from Executive Office:The Finance Department is responsible for assisting the Finance, Procurement and Audit Committee. It however, does not have dedicated personnel to assist the Finance, Procurement and Audit  Committee Members. Cooperation among Finance, Procurement and Audit Committee Members and the External Auditors:  Cooperation between Finance, Procurement and Audit Committee Members and External Auditors.  The Finance, Procurement and Audit Committee Members work towards the mutual exchange of information by receiving information on the auditing system, auditing plans and the status of implementation of audits from the External Auditors, and at the same time explaining their own auditing plans and audit implementation status. The Company believes the foregoing is an effective forum for information exchange. The Finance, Procurement and Audit Committee Members regularly hold meetings with management to receive information regarding the internal control and risk management systems system, auditing plans, and audit results within the Company, and to provide feedback to management on the status of the Audit Committee Members' audits.
 Disclosure of Individual Directors' Remuneration  Partial individual disclosureDirector and Executive Officer Remuneration:

 Number of Executive Officers FiveExecutive Officers:
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Supplementary Explanation:Individual disclosure for persons who were members of the Board of Directors in FY2020 is conducted in “4. Information about corporate governance, etc.” in “IV. Information about Reporting Company” of the FY2020 Annual Report.
 Policy on Determining Remuneration Amounts  Established and Calculation Methods
Disclosure of Policy on Determining Remuneration Amounts and Calculation Methods:The policy on determining remuneration amounts and calculation methods for Directors and Executive Officers in FY 2020 are set forth in the Annual Report.Matters on Functions of Business Execution, Auditing, Oversight, Nomination and Remuneration Decisions (Overview of Current Corporate Governance System).As of 3 August 2020, as part of the goal of further strengthening corporate governance, the Company 

changed to a company with three committees in order to: (i) Make explicit the separation of duties and   responsibilities of the Board as it relates to   the different functions of the organisation. (ii) Work to further enhance supervisory   functions and ensure thorough risk   management in order to safeguard the   soundness and transparency of management   and, (iii)Realize agile execution of business in   order to rapidly respond to changes in the   business environment.

 Patrick Setsiba:                                           12 of 14 meetings (86%) Alfred Mosimanegape:                              14 of 14 meetings (100%) Mpho Motlhasedi:                                      14 of 14 meetings (100%) Kopano Mantswe:                                      12 of 14 meetings (86%) Benjamin Mogotsi:                                     11 of 14 meetings (79%) Tomeletso Sereetsi:                                   11 of 14 meetings (79%) Winani Sekani:                                             7 of 14 meetings (50%) Staffnurse Bangu Lesetedi-Keothepile:    12 of 14 meetings (86%) Game Bantsi:                                              12 of 14 meetings (86%) Moletlanye Trinity Mphoeng                     14 of 14 meetings (100%)          

The status of attendance at Board meetings by each Director in FY2020 was as follows:

35*Note 1: All the Director's date of assumption of office was 25 August 2017, so the number of Board meetings the Directors were eligible to attend will be the same for all of them.
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The Board makes decisions on important manage-ment issues and oversees the execution of business by Management. As of 30 June 2020, the Board consists of 10 Directors, 9 of whom oversee the Company as Non-executive Directors each with considerable experience and a high level of insight.Furthermore, one of the Directors is an independent member acting as an ex-officio Director representing Government of Botswana
BOARD AND DIRECTORSBOARD AND DIRECTORS



COMMITTEES AND BOARD:

(i) Executive Committee:

The Board has the following five statutor y committees and the membership of all five is comprised of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Company has established a system that monitors Directors and Management as well as facilitates corporate governance.
The executive committee provides organizational direction for the CEO and the full Board. Members of 

(ii) Nominations & Governance Committee:The Nominations & Governance Committee vets individuals qualified to become Directors, consistent with criteria approved by the Board, and recommends to the Board the Director-nominees, either for election at the next Annual General Meeting (AGM) or to fill any vacancy or newly created directorship on the Board. The Committee is also in charge of developing and recommending to the Board, a set of corporate governance principles applicable to the Company; including criteria for the selection of new 

the executive committee help the CEO and Board members to establish items for Board meeting agendas. The committee has special responsibilities and authorities above all committees. In some instances, it can act on behalf of the full board. The main purpose of the COSBOTS executive committee is to facilitate decision making between Board meetings or in urgent and crisis circumstances. It often also acts as the communication link to the Chief Executive Officer. 

 Alfred Mosimanegape:                              3 of 3 meetings (100%) Patrick Setsiba:                                           3 of 3 meetings (100%) Mpho Motlhasedi:                                      3 of 3 meetings (100%)
The status of attendance at Executive Committee meetings by each committee member in FY2020 was as follows:

directors to serve on the Board, taking into account at a minimum all applicable laws, rules, desirable and diverse experience and areas of expertise, and other factors relative to the overall composition of the Board; and Evaluating, monitoring and making recommendations to the Board with respect to the corporate governance policies and procedures of the Company. A Non-Executive Director (Benjamin Mogotsi) serves as the chairperson. 

 Benjamin Mogotsi:                                         5 of 5 meetings (100%)  Mpho Motlhasedi:                                          5 of 5 meetings (100%)  Alfred Mosimanegape:                                  4 of 5 meetings (80%)  Staffnurse Bangu Lesetedi Keothepile        1 of 5 meetings (20%) Game Bantsi:                                                  5 of 5 meetings (100%) 

The status of attendance at Nomination & Governance Committee meetings by each committee member in FY2020 was as follows: 

*Note 1: This committee member's date of assumption of office was 1 October 2019, so Mrs Staffnurse Bangu Lesetedi Keothepile was not eligible to attend committee meetings before her date of appointment. 
36

COMMITTEES AND BOARD:



The Finance, Audit and Procurement Committee oversees firstly, the integrity of the company's financial statements, accounting and financial reporting processes and Annual Financial Statement audits. Secondly, the committee oversees the company's compliance with legal and regulatory r e q u i r e m e n t s ,  t h e  r e g i s te r e d  Au d i t  fi r m' s (independent auditor's) qualifications and indepen-dence. Thirdly, it oversees the performance of the 

The members of the Membership Committee oversee the integrity of the company's membership services and the company's membership & distribution rules, media/PR and communications strategy, code of conduct policy, members issues and the advocacy role of the organisation. In addition, they supervise the 

(iv) Membership Committee :

The Human Resource and Staff welfare Committee's responsibility is to review and report on, matters relating to human resources, compensation policy, and if required, make recommendations to the Board or management. It also establishes a plan of continuity and development of senior management staff. It further provides oversight of issues of executive management compensation, performance 

company's independent auditors and the company's systems of disclosure controls and procedures, and lastly, internal controls over financial reporting, and compliance with ethical standards adopted by the company.  A  Non-E xecutive Director  (Mpho Motlhasedi) serves as the chairperson of this committee. 

 Mpho Motlhasedi:                   9 of 9 meetings (100%) Alfred Mosimanegape:            9 of 9 meetings (100%) Tomeletso Sereetsi:                 6 of 9 meetings (67%) Kopano Mantswe:                    8 of 9 meetings (89%)

The status of attendance at Finance, Audit and Procurement Committee meetings by each committee member in FY2020 was as follows: 

company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as the company's membership registration systems, membership information and data integrity, reporting, and compliance with ethical standards adopted by the company. A Non-Executive Director (Kopano Mantswe) serves as its chairperson. 
 Kopano Mantswe:                                    3 of 3 meetings (100%) Winnie Winani Sekani:                            1 of 3 meetings (33%) Moletlanye Trinity Mphoeng:                 3 of 3 meetings (100%) Benjamin Mogotsi:                                  3 of 3 meetings (100%) Staffnurse Bangu Lesetedi-Keothepile:   2 of 3 meetings (67%)

The status of attendance at Membership Committee meetings by each committee member in FY2020 was as follows: 

assessment and succession planning. Lastly, it also promotes Human Resource practices, which would include such things as the end-to-end annual talent strategy and plan, workforce plan, goals and objectives, and progress report indicators and report to the Board on potential risks or gaps in resources. A Non-Executive Director (Moletlanye Mphoeng) serves as the chairperson.

(iii) Finance, Audit and Procurement Committee:

(v) Human Resource and Staff welfare Committee:
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 Moletlanye Trinity Mphoeng:   2 of 2 meetings (100%) Winnie Winani Sekani:              2 of 2 meetings (100%) Tomeletso Sereetsi:                  1 of 2 meetings (50%) Game Bantsi:                             2 of 2 meetings (100%)

The status of attendance at Human Resource & Staff Welfare Committee meetings by each committee member in FY2020 was as follows:

Management decides matters related to execution of business and execute the business of the Company, with the CEO as head of management entrusted with execution of business in general by resolution of the Board. The CEO grants his or her authority to the Finance & Administration Manager, the Legal Services & Compliance Manager, the Documentation and Distribution manager, and other executive officers in charge of departments with important functions and holds control over the shared business execution framework. As of 30 June 2020, there were 6 executive managers (including the Representative of BAMAS and CEO). Executive Managers manage the functions or business of the Company within a certain scope, pursuant to delegation by the Board or CEO, and carry out business. Overview of the Decision-Making process and each type of Committee in the Implementation of the Business of the Company The Company chiefly delegates business decision-making authority from the Board to the CEO. In addition to the CEO, who is the head of the executive management team, the Company has in place a management framework with the Finance & Administration Manager, the Legal Services and Compliance Manager and the Distribution and Documentation Manager as the people jointly responsible for the overall operations of the Company's business. Each Executive Management Officer receives a sub-delegation of the CEO's decision-making authority,  pursuant to the Company's Delegation of Authority Policy and Procedure Manual. These mechanisms are aimed at accelerating the execution of business and improving the transparency of the decision-making process. In addition, the following advisory bodies have been established and operate to assist the appropriate 38

exercise of the CEO's business implementation decision-making authority.  • The Executive Committee (EC)   deliberates important management   matters of the Company as an advisory   body to the CEO.  • The Visibility Team (VT) deliberates and   confirms important matters relating to   brand awareness, publicity and product   developments, as an advisory body to the   CEO. The Company has also established the following company-wide committees to enhance and streamline the internal control response pursuant to laws and regulations.  • The Internal/Management Procurement   Committee is chaired by the CEO and   promotes internal controls in relation to   procurement and disposal of assets. In addition to the three committees, the procurement evaluation Committee has been established and is chaired by the Head of Reprography and handles internal controls regarding tender evaluation under the Assets Procurement and Disposal Policy. 
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Status of Development of a Risk Management Framework : (i) The Company has established a risk management system and is promoting its improvement  through two risk management activities: “priority risk management” and “departmental risk  management.” For priority risk management, the Company selects risks faced by the company  with a high level of potential impact and high urgency works to minimize risk at as early a  stage as possible by establishing a “risk owner” for each risk. For departmental risk management,  under the “risk supervisors” which are the managers of each department, the Company goes  through the “Plan-Do-Check-Action” or PDCA cycle of identification of each inherent risk,  evaluation, planning and implementation of counter-measures, and monitoring with the  intention of minimizing risk.

Audits :
  c. Chartered Accountant conducting audits Designated and Engagement Partners:    Mompati Kgaimena. 

  e. Evaluation of audit Firm by the Committee    The Finance, Audit and Procurement Committee conducts annual evaluations of the audit    firm's quality control, audit team suitability, appropriateness of audit fees, effectiveness of    communicat ion with the Committee,  effectiveness  of  communicat ion with top    management, appropriateness of audits and appropriate evaluation of the risk of    misconduct by, and qualifications of the audit firm, based on the Evaluation Standards in    the Finance Manual. 

 (i) External Audit Firm   a. Name of auditors: Mamlathan & Associates   b. Period of continued auditing: 5 years :
  d. Audit firm's appointment and dismissal policy: The Finance, Audit and Procurement    Committee is mandated to appoint (and recommend that the board submit for member    ratification, if applicable), compensate, evaluate, retain, terminate and oversee the work    performed by the independent auditor. Termination of the External Auditor firm is based on    the unanimous agreement of all Committee Members if the Audit firm's is found to fall    under the provided in any of the Items in Article 340(1) of the Companies Act. In addition, if    the Committee determines it is necessary, such as if there is an impediment to the Audit    firm's performance of duties, the Committee may propose terminating or not rehiring the    Audit Firm as an agenda item for the Annual General Meeting of Members. Decisions on the    appointment of an Audit Firm are made based on the above policy and the results of an    evaluation using the Finance Manual. 

 (ii) These risk management initiatives are regularly reported to the Board as major internal  control activities, and their efficacy is verified. In addition, the Company operates an emergency  information contact system to enable swift communication of information to top management  and speedy and accurate response in the event unforeseen circumstances occur. To establish a  crisis management system for the occurrence of a serious incident, the Company has created an  emergency response manual, which provides for the setup of an emergency response  organization and the clarification of the chain of command. The Company has also prepared a  system to take appropriate measures in response to the reporting of a serious incident. 
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Execution of Limitation of Liability Agreements with Directors and Directors and Officer Liability Insurance.The Company has entered into agreements with all non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Setsiba, Mr. Alfred Mosimanegape, Mr. Mpho Motlhasedi, Mr. Kopano Mantswe, Ms. Winani Winnie Sekani, Mr. Benjamin Mogotsi, Mr. Moletlanye Mphoeng, Mr. Game Bantsi, and Mr. Tomeletso Sereetsi) in limiting their liability as provided in Article 3.5 of the Company's Constitution. The company has taken out a Directors and Officer Liability Insurance policy, which prevents officers of the company from being criminally liable for any acts or omissions in their capacity as officers or employees as provided for under Section 159(5) of the Companies Act. 

 (iii) The Company's basic policy in times of disaster, such as severe storms or other natural disaster   or an outbreak of infectious disease, is to ensure the safety of customers and employees and   their families and to assist local communities. The Company prepares disaster counter   measures and has a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to this end. As disaster counter measures,   the Company conducts drills in communicating among employees based on a presumed   emergency. As preparations against the possibility that employees will be unable to return to   their homes and need to stay at the office for a three-day period, the Company conducts   initiatives for communicating with local municipal authorities in order to ensure means   through which they can communicate with their families and receive emergency supplies. As   BCPs, the Company has formulated plans of operation in the case of major outbreak of   infectious disease. The Company works to improve these BCPs through regular drills and   communication among staff. Further, considering the recent spread of COVID-19, the   Company newly established a “Health and Wellness Committee” from FY2020 and will   endeavor to promote health and wellness activities, and Business Continuity Management   (BCM) on a regular basis.

  Supplementary Explanations Early Dispatch of General Meetings Notice The Company strives to send notices early to ensure   enough time for members to consider the Annual   Reports. Scheduling Annual General Meetings of Members  Held to avoid peak days. Avoiding Peak Days Allowing Electronic Exercise of Voting Rights The Company has enabled the electronic exercise of   voting rights (via established virtual platforms). This   avenue was introduced only this year for the EGM that   was convened to consider and approve the Company   constitution, which special Meeting of members was held   on 28 November 2020. Participation in Electronic Voting Platform For the first time, the Company is participating in an   electronic voting platform for members.

 Efforts to Stimulate the General Membership Meetings and Facilitate the Exercise of Voting Rights.
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Measures to Ensure Due Respect for Members:

 Other ▪ Notices for Ordinary General Meetings of members and  other materials related to member meetings are   published on the Company's website.   ▪ The Company makes available recordings of each   meeting for approximately one month after the close of   that meeting.

 Providing Notice (Summary) in Setswana The Company posts notices in both English and Setswana   on its website as well as in the local print and digital   media (voting platform for members operated by Lumi   Global), in an effort to disclose information to all   members across the country.

 Stipulation of Internal Rules for Respecting the Position  of a member The Company respects the position of its individual stakeholders, and to fulfill its obligation, it has established the Members Code of Conduct (hereinafter referred to as “The Code”) as a standard with which all members of the Company must comply. The Company has also formulated the Social and Cultural Fund. This fund has been set up to address the social needs of members and has been rolled out to promote the cultural heritage of artists in general in Botswana. Implementation of Sustainability Activities In accordance with its Vision & Mission, the Company conducts business activities to fulfill its Corporate Social Responsibilities. The Company identifies and tackles material issues in the environmental, social, and governance domains.  Development of Policies on Information Provision to  Stakeholders In connection with its goal of appropriate and timely disclosure of information that may influence the quantum of distribution, the Company has prepared and announced its “Corporate Communications Policy for Timely Disclosure of Material Information”. This policy stipulates the types of information to be disclosed, basic rules for disclosure, persons and departments in charge of the disclosure, the disclosure process and various other matters.
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Measures to Ensure Due Respect for Members: Other Matters Based on the Act on Promotion of Participation and Advancement of women and people living with disabilities in the workplace, the company has formulated an action plan to promote women and people living with disabilities advancement, and set a goal of people working at management level at 50% by the end of fiscal 2020, and 10% for people living with disability for the same period. The company will continue this initiative to create an environment where more female employees and people with disabilities can work in positions of greater responsibility. As of 30 June 2020, there are (2) two female officers in management positions, at executive level.MATTERS RELATED TO THE  CONTROL SYSTEM INTERNAL1. Basic Views on Internal Control Systems and the Progress of System Development:The Company has created the Vision & Mission so that looking into the future all employees of the company can act as a unit with a shared concept.In addition, the Company has established the building of a high-performance team which represents the frame of mind and behavior that each one of its employees should be in. The COSBOTS Code of Ethics serves as the foundation for these provisions and the norms to be followed by all employees. In addition, the Board passed several policies and procedure manuals as a basis for the overall Internal Control Systems of the company and in order to establish a system to ensure appropriateness of operations, which is set forth below: 2. System to ensure that performance of duties of Management and employees of the Company conforms to laws and the company constitution.  (i) In addition to establishing the COSBOTS  Code of Ethics, building an organizational  framework and implementing education and  training for the observance of laws, the  company constitution, and social rules and  manners, the Company established an 

 internal contact point and uses information  gathered through such means for the  prevention, correction and prevention of  recurrence. (ii)  The Company intends on appointing  Outside Directors to oversee the Company's  management and will be working to achieve  successful oversight through audits by the  Audit and Risk Committee. (iii) The Company's External Auditors  strictly audits whether the operational  performance of the Company is in violation of  laws, the Constitution, Company regulations  or other rules. If the auditors find a problem, it  is reported to the Audit and Risk Committee or  other parties and thereafter regularly  confirms the status of improvement  regarding such issue. (iv) The Company's Management  Committee, which is chaired by the CEO, was  established as a core part of the  organization that oversees amongst  other matters, issues related to  internal control in compliance with the  Companies Act. 42



 (i) The Company works to maintain and  improve management efficiency by establishing  budgets with annual management plans and  clarifying specific business targets and execution  methods for a functional organization. The Board  regularly receives reports on the status of  implementation. 

3. Rules and other systems concerning  management of risk of losses by the Company: 

 iii. The Company has established rules for risk  management and works to set up and strengthen  a companywide risk management framework.  iv. To prepare, in the case of the occurrence of an  unforeseen incident, information is promptly  conveyed to Directors to set up a system that can  respond promptly and accurately.4. System to ensure that Management efficiently executes their duties:

 (ii) The Company makes clear the responsibilities  and authority of the Directors and Management,  and promotes the efficient execution of the duties  of the Board and the Management based on the  Rules of the Board as established in the Matters  Reserved for Board policy, the Rules of the  Management Committee and various other rules. 

 i. For risks during the Company's business, the  Company has clearly established standards for  resolutions at the Board meetings and the  Management meetings in the Board Charter and  the Rules of the Management Committee  respectively, and operates based on such.  ii. Each manager is responsible for risk manage- ment at organizational level in their respective  department.

 (iii) To set up a system for efficient organizational  operation and business execution and establish a  system facilitating rapid and agile decision- making for important issues for the Company. The  Board broadly delegates business execution to  Management through the delegations of  Authority Policy and within the scope permitted by  law, to ensure that the Directors' performance of  their duties is conducted efficiently. 

 (ii) The Company works to set up and enhance  frameworks for proper business execution, observance of the internal processes and business  audits in conformance with laws and the Constitution through guidance and management  of operations in accordance with business  conditions and other factors.

 (iv) The Company works towards promoting the  strengthening, development and rationalization of  operations through guidance, management and  other means in line with its rules for managing the  business, and other internal regulations and rules,  in accordance with business conditions and  various other factors. 

 (iv) The Company works to maintain and improve  an objective and transparent delegation of  authority procedure for the purpose of expedited  and clear decision-making processes as well as  ensuring consistent decision-making. 5. System for preservation and management of  information concerning the execution of the  duties of the Management of the Company: Based on internal regulations and other rules, the Company prepares information on the execution of the Management duties as written documents and electronic data. The Company appropriately manages such documents by establishing a person in charge and stipulating the preparation method, preservationmethod, preservation period and copying and disposal method, and so forth according to the importance of the information. 6. System to ensure the proper operation of  business.  (i) The Company ensures the proper operation of  the business and the responsibilities and  authority, management method and other  matters related to management of operations  through its internal regulations and other rules. 

 (iii) The Company strives to set up and strengthen  risk management systems through guidance on  the implementation of risk management and other  means, in accordance with business conditions and  various other factors.

43



 (iii) Management and employees of the Company  promptly make appropriate reports on items  related to the duties of the Audit & Risk Committee  when required to do so. 

 (i) The Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee   attends meetings of the Board and other  important meetings. (ii) The Company is thorough in setting up and  operating a framework for reliably providing the  Audit & Risk Committee with information from  within the Company on management, compliance  and various other matters. 

 (vi) The Company ensures the adequacy of their  respective financial information by setting up the  necessary internal regulations and other rules for  the preparation and disclosure of reliable financial  reports.

 (v) The Company establishes rules for managing  the business and other internal regulations and  rules so that prior or subsequent explanations and  reports are made concerning the company's  business, results, financial condition and other  important information. 

7. Management executes the duties of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company.

 (i) Management who are responsible for assisting  the Audit & Risk Committee in its duties carry out  such duties by receiving instructions exclusively  from the Audit & Risk Committee. 9. System for Directors (excluding Directors who are Audit & Risk Committee Members), Management, and employees of the Company, or persons receiving reports from the foregoing parties, to report to the Audit & Risk Committee and other systems for reporting to the Audit & Risk Committee. 

 (iv) Management shall immediately report to the Audit & Risk Committee any facts they discover  that pose a risk of causing significant damage to  the Company. 

8. Independence of Directors and employees in the preceding paragraph from Management and ensuring effectiveness of instruction by the Audit and Risk Committee to such Directors and employees. 

12. Effective monitoring of other audits by the Audit & Risk Committee

10. System to ensure that persons who have submitted a report described in paragraph 8 above shall not receive any disadvantageous treatment due to submission of such report. The Company prohibits disadvantageous treatment of Management and employees of the Company who have made reports directly or indirectly to the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company related to having given such report and makes this prohibition generally known among Management and employees of the Company. 11. Procedure for advance payment or reimburse-ment of expenses incurred in the execution of their duties (limited to those relating to the execution of the duties of the Audit & Risk Committee) by Audit and Risk Committee Members of the Company, and other policies for processing expenses and debts incurred in the execution of such duties. When an Audit & Risk Committee Member of the Company requests an advance or other payment for expenses from the Company for the execution of their duties pursuant to the Companies Act, the Company promptly processes such expenses or debt after deliberation by the department in charge, except in cases where it is proven that the expenses or debt in such request were not necessary for the execution of the duties of such Audit & Risk Committee Member. 
 The Audit & Risk Committee of the Company aims to ensure appropriate communication and effective execution of their auditing duties by engaging in regular exchanges of views with the CEO, and by working to cooperate with the External Auditor. Others:1. The Company believes that, to fulfill its social responsibility to its members, it is important that it achieves accountability by disclosing timeous and appropriate information to its stakeholders. Furthermore, the Company believes that achieving this will enhance organisational transparency. Therefore, the Company has decided to carefully comply with the Social and Cultural responsibility, and to formulate and carefully follow its established policy, which clearly states the types of information to be disclosed, the disclosure process and other varied matters. 44



2. Types of Disclosed Information - The information shall include “information related to the Company's business, operations, or performance which has a significant effect on royalty payment decisions” (hereinafter referred to as “material information”) that Companies and Intellectual Property Authority (CIPA) requires to be disclosed in a timely and appropriate manner based on the Supervision guidelines.3. Basic Principles of Disclosure4. The Company shall comply with the following four basic principles when engaging in the timely disclosure of material information; (i) Information is disclosed transparently and  in accordance with the facts regardless of its  content (ii) Information is disclosed in a timely manner  and without delay

5. Person Responsible for the Disclosure of Material Information is the CEO, or anyone designated to do so. 
 (iv) Disclosed to ensure continuity of the contents  of the information disclosed.
 (iii) Disclosed to ensure that information is transmitted fairly to our various stakeholders

6. Other Policies: As a rule, the Company shall not comment on inquiries about rumors. However, if the Company judges that not responding to the rumor could have a serious impact on the Company, it shall correspond with external parties in an appropriate manner. 
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The COSBOTS Conflict of interest policy requires Board members to disclose external interests conflicting with the interests of the company. These potential conflicts of interest include relationships or responsibilities (personal, financial, and others). The policy also requires Directors, Officers and non-Board committee members to avoid situations where they may be in a position of conflict of interest or perceived conflict of interest. All Directors have a duty to ensure that the integrity of the decision-making process of the Board are maintained by ensuring that they and other members of the Board are free from conflict or potential conflict in their decision-making.

The Corporate section of the Risk Register is monitored by the Chief Executive Officer and Management on a monthly basis and is updated by departmental heads to take account of changing environment and circumstances.

The COSBOTS ERM Policy sets out the company's approach to risk together with the means for identifying, analyzing and managing risk in order to minimize its frequency and impact. The risks considered significant to the ability of COSBOTS to achieve its objectives are set out in the Corporate section of the Risk Register, which incorporates actions for dealing with those risks.

The Audit & Risk Committee is a committee of the Board of Directors and has responsibility for assessing the effectiveness of risk management. The Audit & Risk Committee reports on the arrangements for risk management to the Board of Directors.RESPONSIBILITY OF ERM POLICY:

ERM POLICY:

The CEO takes the overall responsibility for administering the ERM policy. Designated individuals within the organisation accept accountability and are continuously provided with the appropriate skills training and adequate resources to check controls, 

OBJECTIVES OF ERM:

  • The reliability of financial reporting and the   achievement of financial targets;
 • The efficient delivery of service to members;
 • The adequate identification, assessment,   response, control action and monitoring of   risks and opportunities on a timely basis   throughout the company, consistent with   COSBOTS objectives;

 I. Risk and opportunitymanagement procedure. ii. Financial Risk management procedure iii. ERM reporting procedure iv. ERM compliance and monitoring   procedure v. ERM support procedure

monitor risks, improve controls and communicate effectively about risks and their management to external and internal stakeholders.

 • The compliance with applicable external laws   and regulations and with internal policies and   guidelines;  • The effectiveness and efficiency of operations; • The transparenc y and qual ity  of  r isk ,  opportunity and monitoring and reporting   (e.g. internal management reporting, financial   statements), etc.ERM PROCEDURE:To enhance its effectiveness and operational reliability as well as to satisfy compliance require-ments, certain mandatory procedures exist:

The ERM system is designed to provide a reasonable assurance to the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the finance and administration department regarding the achievement of the following objectives:
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST:CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT(ERM):ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT(ERM):



REMUNERATION POLICY OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 • The setting of objectives and definitions of risk   tolerance;

In addition to the regular monitoring activities, assessments about the adequacy and effectiveness of the ERM system are discussed between the Chief Executive Officer and the respective departments. These discussions serve to prioritize potential issues, define and implement appropriate actions, if needed and derive conclusions for overall ERM report.   ERM REPORTING PROCEDURES:

RISK AND MONITORING MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE:The recurring Risk and Opportunity Management procedures comprise several components;
 • The identification and assessment of risks and   opportunities; • The determination of risks and opportunity   responses and control activities (i.e. policies,   procedures and other activities)ERM COMPLIANCE AND MONITORING PROCEDURES:COSBOTS has established formal ERM self-assessment mechanisms to be applied by each identified process/control owner on a regular basis. The process/control owner must assess his/her operational and functional risks as well as the operating and design effectiveness of the internal controls.  The process is monitored by each department to verify the successful implementation of the remediation action and the remedied controls are periodically re-assessed. The relevant risks are subjected to a management discussion process. Each year external auditors provide an independent review of the status of the ERM systems in all thedepartments. 

 Every year identified significant deficiencies and material weaknesses are reported in sub-presentation reports. The sign-off process requires the Chief Executive Officer to confirm to the Board, to the best of his knowledge, whether:

Based on the ERM self-assessment, department managers prepare formal presentation reports as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the ERM system within their scope of responsibility.

 • The owners of each control activity are clearly   defined; and  • The risk management system is designed and   operated to identify, assess, respond to, design   controls and monitor/report on risk on a timely   basis. The Chief Executive Officer's ERM statement is mainly based on self-assessments, reviews and management discussions described above, and is substantiated by reports provided to the Chief Executive Officer by all business units / departmental management. 

 • The internal control system is adequate to   provide a reasonable assurance regarding   the reliability of financial reporting as well   as compliance with applicable laws and   regulations; • The control objectives are being achieved   by controls and are documented adequately;

COMPENSATION OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD:

REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND POLICY: 

T h e  n o m i n a t i o n s ,  H u m a n  R e s o u r c e s  a n d Remuneration Committee is charged with the responsibility of overseeing remuneration, and its main responsibilities amongst other things is to prepare an annual remuneration report for inclusion in the company's integrated report 
T h e  co m p a ny  p l a c e s  h e av y  r e l i a n c e  o n  i t s remuneration strategy to attract, retain and motivate competent executives and staff. The strategy is designed to motivate employees to ensure sustainable value creation for members. As such, its remuneration policy and practices ensure alignment of the remuneration and incentives of executives and employees, and the overall corporate strategy. The remuneration policy and practices aim to reward superior performance.
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 



KEY DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND POLICY: The company places heavy reliance on its remuneration strategy to attract, retain and motivate competent executives and staff. The strategy is designed to motivate employees to ensure sustainable value creation for members. As such, its remuneration policy and practices ensure alignment of the remuneration and incentives of executives and employees, and the overall corporate strategy. The remuneration policy and practices aim to reward superior performance.OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION NON-EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS: Directors remuneration is determined by a special resolution at an Annual General Meeting. Directors remuneration is not directly related to the organisation's performance. The staff remuneration policy rewards high performance and aims to attract 
talented employees. The company offers a cost to company remuneration package and depending on specific individual's employment arrangements, he or she may qualify for benefits, such as car, housing and cell phone allowances over and above basic pay, pension, medical aid and other insured benefits. 
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KEY DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

 Game Bantsi  P 23,598.30 Benjamin Mogotsi  P 34,339.50 Moletlanye Mphoeng  P 21,565.00 Winani Sekani  P 25,269.00 OneStop Secretarial Services  P 162,705.20 Hotel &Conf- venue hired for Board meetings  P 88,863.00  Total P 605,214.00

 Alfred Mosimanegape  P 33,979.00 Mpho Motlhasedi  P 84,286.50 Kopano Mantswe  P 66,648.82 Tomeletso Seeretsi  P 15,315.00 Patrick Setsiba  P 29,739.50 Staffnurse Bangu Lesetedi-Keotepile  P 18,905.00

 Name  Ammount

As the focus will continue to be on growth in market share, customer relations and brand visibility will be an integral part of everyday business. The effort to strengthen relationships with users started a more intense outreach program that involved Licensing, Corporate Communications and the CEO. Many clients 

Music Licensing is perpetually seeking to expand its customer base to broaden the streams through which the company generates revenue. The aim during the year under review has been to grow market share in virgin segments of the industry, which have to date remained untapped and still have growth potential. Growth in market share was 21%, which comprised of important and incidental user categories. This growth was significant income deriving from the growth in market share.

MUSIC LICENSING : shared insights into their business, and this helped unravel their connection to COSBOTS. REPROGRAPHY:

Over the period under review, the department has engaged all users of reprographic reproduction of works in an endeavour to further explain the COSBOTS offering and the details of its mandate. The engagement happened in a variety of ways, including participation in education conferences and other events, webinars and individual training sessions. The various engagements were conducted with a view to:

This department exists to negotiate, collect and distribute copyright fees and royalties on behalf of creators of text and images, visual creator and audio-visual authors. It also represents our members on matters affecting their Intellectual Property Rights (IPR).



RISK FACTORS:

However, when the economy dips as witnessed during the outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic, consumers started feeling the squeeze, hence the knock-on effect for the media and entertainment sector. Subsequently, COSBOTS licensing income was put under pressure, partly due to the sharp decrease in advertising revenues at commercial radio and television stations, as well as music events being cancelled, and closure of businesses that exploit music.

COSBOTS is subject to many risks and uncertainties that may affect its  operational and financial performance. The business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by the risks described below. These are not the only risks COSBOTS faces. Additional risks not presently known to COSBOTS or those it currently deems immaterial may also impair its business operations. BUSINESS RELATED RISKS:(Entertainment market cyclicality)

COSBOTS has in some instances, had to suspend collection activities to allow the businesses to recover.DEPENDENCE ON ONE DOMINANT CLIENT AND ON CERTAIN USERS IN THE MARKET:The growing popularity of copyright-free music and declining advertising revenue at traditional radio and television stations, partly caused by the shift from linear media consumption to on-demand consump-tion plays a major role in causing COSBOTS to be more and more reliant on one dominant client. 

The entertainment sector is comprised of extremely cyclical businesses that are prone to volatility, and lend themselves to the whims of consumer discretion, which like travel and fashion is heavily dependent on the consumer having spare cash.When the economy is humming along, so too will consumer confidence and consequently this will help the sector to perform, and COSBOTS being able to collect more royalties. 

 • increasing understanding of copyright and  licensing issues; • providing licensing information; and • designing licenses that are appropriate to the   needs of their members.COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC RELATIONS:

To achieve the above objectives, the department prepares on an annual basis, a Communications Strategy, Communications Plan and Stakeholder Engagement Plan, which are approved and monitored by the Board's Membership Committee. Although there was a significant decrease in workshops in the current fiscal year, the company managed to engage at least 90% of its key stakeholders to cultivate new relationships and solidify existing ones.

The Corporate Communications Departments' role is to be pro-active in enhancing the organisation's relationship with stakeholders, brand recognition and to ensure the company reputation is positive. Core roles of the department are informed by the mandate o f  p r ov i d i n g  t h e  ove r a l l  co o r d i n a t i o n  a n d organisational effectiveness of the COSBOTS communications function, information dissemination and public education. This is in line with the company's strategic objectives. 

DOCUMENTATION AND DISTRIBUTIONS:

ADVOCACY :The Board and Management continue to use every opportunity to proactively address copyright issues that affect members with Government and the Regulator. Representatives of COSBOTS have met with executives in several Government departments to discuss challenges facing the industry.  COSBOTS continues to use its best endeavours to obtain accurate user and member information that is necessary to enable the organisation to have a fair and equitable distribution of royalties. During the year the company embarked on a “know your customer” initiative to collect up to date member details and personal information. This was intended to improve the quality of our internal information and has made it possible to improve our turnaround time for processing distributions and allowed for more precise payments of royalties. 49

RISK FACTORS:



Currently COSBOTS depends on the public broad-caster as a lifeline for the company and with the resultant economic condition due to COVID 19 and possible budgets cuts to Government institutions including the Public Broadcaster, this presents a massive risk to the Company. 

With the advent of the fourth industrial revolution, COSBOTS is faced with challenges and opportunities alike. A profound negative impact on the music industry's evolution from analogue to digital, translates to the ease with which digital music is transmitted through the online broadcasting across national borders and, and how it can easily be pirated. This has a direct impact on the ultimate collection and royalty's distribution. 

AVAILABILITY OF OTHER SOURCES OF INCOME:Internet radio, or webcasting, is at the cusp in terms of technological advancement in music. An increasing number of users and stations enter the digital market each day, resulting in traditional television and radio revenues taking a serious knock. To diversify income streams and to mitigate the risks that come with digitization of the music management, which could potentially result in revenue leaks, COSBOTS took the decision to enter the online licensing space.  A strategic alliance was formed with Composers, Authors and Publishers' Association (CAPPASO) in South Africa. CAPASSO acts as Africa's digital music integrated licensing and processing hub. It licenses digital service providers such as Sportify, Apple music, Deezer, Youtube and Tik Tok.COSBOTS is working towards including the licensing of other sectors such as reprography, audio-visuals, museums and libraries.TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENTS IN THE INDUSTRY: 

A positive outcome of technological advancement is that information technology, data and a service-orientated approach to doing business, are the main pillars of the COSBOTS new strategic plan. The target is to become a technology savvy organisation in the very near future. This means investing in the best innovative technologies to help strengthen operations and improve efficiencies of  the organization. 

 When products and services are outsourced, the risks of the suppliers and service providers are inherited by the acquiring organisation. As such, COSBOTS' outsourcing is certainly not be viewed as a “fire and forget” activity.  

It is paramount to note that the accurate and reliable data is processed within the company's major databases. This will improve data quality and increase the efficacy of the royalty distribution process. DEPENDENCE ON THIRD PARTY SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR BACKBONE SYSTEMS:

There is an effective supplier selection process in place with ongoing assessment, validation and management processes to ensure the organization gets a value-for-money service by managing  all risk factors associated with engaging third-party suppliers and service providers.LEGAL RISK:

Intellectual Property (IP)defines what COSBOTS is and what it will become in the future, it’s reputation, brand, strategies, research, decision-making processes, software, client lists, e-mail com-munications and, finally, its employees. Reputation is perhaps the most intangible, least visible, and most vulnerable asset of its intellectual property.Threats to the company's Intellectual Property include those from unauthorized copying over the internet, threats from hackers, and threats from employees. Neglecting external IP risks often results in high costs for avoiding the infringement of third parties' IPRs, be it through litigation, (forced) licensing or the cost-intensive late development of circumvention solutions.

The company can potentially suffer legal risks that would be occasioned by damage or any loss incurred due to negligence in compliance with laws related to the business. An example of this would be non-compliance to the Copyright & Neighbouring Rights Act and Companies Act, and the regulator taking legal action as a result. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:
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To mitigate this risk, COSBOTS has procedures that call for a change in culture; a transformation as profound as the shift to a customer-oriented culture that many organizations go through. It is an orientation to alertness, protection and swift action.WORKFORCE INFORMATION:As at 30 June 2020 the COSBOTS workforce was composed of nineteen (19) employees. The workforce has remained at the same level as it was in 2019.  In 2020 five (5) fresh graduates joined the team. These graduates were coopted from the national internship program. The entire workforce of COSBOTS is in Gaborone at the company's offices at the Gaborone International Commerce Park, and on average working hours per week amounting to between 35 and 40 hours.ORGANIZATION OF HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT: The key mission of the HR function is to ensure that COSBOTS attracts, develops, motivates and retains a world class workforce. The department is concerned with identifying talent gaps in the organization, advertising for positions, evaluating potential candidates and hiring top talent and retention of the talent. The department also oversees orientation programs to introduce new employees to the organization goals, objectives and policies. Overall, the human resource department guarantees the s m o o t h  r u n n i n g  o f  e m p l o y e e s  w i t h i n  t h e organization.

 (iii) Leadership training needs which make up   the personal  development training of   managers and supervisors geared towards   t h e  d e ve l o p m e n t  o f  e m p l oy e e ' s  s o f t   skills.  We have also done several staff   engagement activities which were geared   towards improving  the staff morale in order to   motivate high productivity and team building.

The department's main goal is to create a high-performance culture that will take COSBOTS to the highest rankings of  collective management organi-zations in the world. This is done through training and development, staff engagement and quarterly staff orientation,  to c lar if y  company values and communication. OVER THE PAST YEAR WE HAVE DONE TRAINING BASED ON:  (i) Performance development plan and needs   assessment,  (ii) Industry specific training through the WIPO   academy targeted at employees whose   work is centered around the development   of Intellectual property. We are therefore,   happy to report that 70% of our staff have   done a minimum of four (4) WIPO academy   courses and have all passed with flying   colors. These course works are intended to    help build human capacity on IPR management,



Since these restrictions are largely still in place, the possible ramp up in business activity is unlikely to happen. This analysis shows that the restrictions are likely to go on until mid-2021, and this will certainly result in a deterioration in the macroeconomic indicators, hence affect the company's ability to license businesses that will be negatively affected by the vagaries of the market. Under these conditions, the Net Distributable Income should be down in 2021 but significantly positive, and supported by robust underlying performance once the prevalence of the virus is arrested and new infections are brought under control, making a case for the economy to be open and business to resurge. This could lead to a significant change in the ability of the company to start licensing users on a grand scale.

COSBOTS has begun 2020 with a mixed level of visibility. The company's bottom up analysis is supported by the client list and the decision of the Board to revise tariffs years ago and the recent development in the market where, due to the advent of the Corona Virus and for health reasons, Government issued a number of restrictions that had a direct impact on the individuals and businesses that provide a lifeline for COSBOTS. These restrictions started in March 2020 and had a marked effect on the last quarter of the financial year.  

FINANCIAL      FOR 2020TARGETS
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When the novel COVID 19 virus first hit the borders of Botswana, the creative sector was the  first to feel the “heat” and the sector  suffered tremendously as it was the first to be shut down. Even though some activities are slowly returning, such that the sector has the ability to host public performances of audiences of not more than fifty (50) people per event, there is still a very long way to go. It is therefore urgent to implement support plans at national level to respond to the magnitude of the crisis and ensure that these measures target artists' survival and growth.Even though the Government of Botswana has established an emergency fund to help artists in financial difficulty due to the COVID-19 crisis, this could not effectively help the hard-hit musicians. It may therefore, be necessary for Government to inject additional money into the industry to help its practitioners to cope with the crisis. Given the economic challenges and commercial head winds experienced by most businesses in the country, growing the existing licensee base for COSBOTS continues to be a major challenge for the Board and Management. The reduction in tariffs in 2018 also did not help the situation. COSBOTS has had to deal with low compliance to copyright law. All  in all ,  organizations and businesses need to carefully monitor how they legally use the content of others (third-party content), and how they mitigate their copyright infringement risks to ensure that they have all the necessary copyright permissions and licensing agreements for the exploitation of others copyright works. However, due to the geographical spread of users and the organisation's limited resources, COSBOTS does not have an adequate system to monitor legal use of third-party content which results in revenue leakage.

COSBOTS    STRATEGIC CHALLENGES
Licensing continues to have problems with compliance as there remain issues of low levels of trust from potential clientele even as there is a concerted effort to reshape the image of the company. The effects of Covid -19 and subsequent lockdowns at the beginning of 2020 has had highly adverse effects on the economy as well as the ability of COSBOTS clientele to meet its obligations, which has caused a dip in income.

We continue to experience issues in relation to the support from stakeholders regarding the issue of enforcement and upholding the law. This has made dealing with matters of cooperation from smaller entities such as bars, promoters, B&B's etc difficult as our only form of reprieve is lodging legal cases, which has proven to be costly. The lowering of tariffs too, has continued to bring in less income even though there has been a growth in market share.

Adopting new technology – because technology is constantly changing and using technological tools in the work place has become the new normal due to the pandemic, there is still a small challenge in getting staff to embrace innovation and learn new technology, this also includes embracing  new systems that come with these technologies. 
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As the company advances and prepares itself for the unknown, we continue to expect great growth and to create new paths of improvement to facilitate that growth.We continue to create value and a seamless customer journey using systems such as the Tenacle licensing application. As we aim to improve the current tariff, we anticipate better income for the organisation, and the inclusion of sectors that use music and have not been licensed in the past. There still remain numerous opportunities to lobby government for the ideal legislative framework that will assist the organisation in enforcement and the possible use of government facilities to assist with licensing. The Board and Management will endeavour to use platforms including Television and streaming of online video content, and official social media platforms to improve the company's visibility and deliver key messages. Furthermore, the proliferation of roadshows to reach remote areas of the country and continued member education remain at the core of the communications strategy. There are opportunities to collaborate with more compliant users and influential artists to drive key m e s s a g e s .  I n  r e l a t i o n  t o  D i s t r i b u t i o n  & Documentation, there are opportunities to assign each musical work a unique world identifier and further reduce the distribution process owing to the improvement in data quality. With the registering of reprographic rights members, we will in future be able to distribute royalties to other non-musical works such as l iterar y works,  fine arts and photography.When the COVID pandemic hit without warning, commerce all around the world went into lock down, which resulted in concerts, tours and festivals being c a n c e l l e d  a n d  h av i n g  r e s t r i c t i o n s  o n  l i v e performances. This has had a disastrous effect on the 

COMPANY’s OUTLOOK
music industry and the collection of royalties. Due to the enormity of the situation, to try and minimize the financial  impact  of  the restr ict ions on the entertainment industry, the Government of Botswana has taken unprecedented steps to set up a relief fund for participants in the creative industry. Despite the magnanimous nature of the gesture, this was only going to delay the inevitable, which was a tight squeeze on the livelihood of the creatives caused by the clamp down on the industry. As noted above, the live industry is unquestionably taking the biggest hit, with the musicians and promoters likely to go out of business due to cancellations. The fact that performing rights revenue from these events have also evaporated completely means that a major part of licensing income has disappeared, which will eventually lead to the next wave of royalty payments being lower, just as the harshness of the economic reality really hits the music industry and the economy as a whole.

There is still an opportunity to lobby government for the promulgation of a fit for purpose legislative framework that will assist in the enforcement of compliance to music licensing requirements. We continue in our endeavour to use platforms such as TV, videos and official social media platforms to improve on visibility and deliver critical messages to all our key stakeholders. 

To try and counter the effects of the pandemic, COSBOTS will work with strategic partners in the region and beyond in an effort to increase licensing and collections. This we also hope, will be achieved through the provision of value-added services to members and technologically driven customer solutions such as the Tenacle, a web based licensing application recently introduced as part of the organisation's offering.
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Another opportunity lies with the ability to assign each musical work a unique world identifier, which will help further reduce the time it takes to match works, and process the distribution information, to speed up payments to members. With the registering of reprographic rights members, we will in future be able to distribute royalties to other non-musical works such as l iterary works, fine arts,  and illustrations.

Rebecca LetshaboCompany Secretary 10 January 2021 

In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby certify, in terms of the Companies Act, that for the year ended 30 June 2020, the company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of a company in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct and up to date.

COSBOTS will also continue to identify ways of doing business more efficiently by introducing innovative solutions that meet the requirements of all our stakeholders and more importantly the needs of our members as the business landscape continues to evolve.  

CONTINUED...

CERTIFICATE BY          COMPANY SECRETARY
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The directors are required by the Companies Act, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the society as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the society and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the society and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the society’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the society is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the society. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the society endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The directors have reviewed the society’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2019 and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, They are satisfied that the society has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the society's financial statements. The financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors and their report is presented on page 5 -17.The financial statements set out on page 7-19, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on 17 December 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:Approval of financial statements
Patrick Setsiba(Chairman)  Mpho Motlhasedi(Treasurer)

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA for the year ended June 30, 2020.1.  Review of financial results and activities:The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the society are set out in these financial statements.2.  Events after the reporting period:The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.3.  Secretary: The company secretary is One Stop Secretarial Services (PTY) LTD.4.  Statement of disclosure to the company's auditors :With respect to each person who is a director on the day that this report is approved: •  there is, so far as the person is aware, no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors   are unaware; and •  the person has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director to be aware of any  relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that   information.The financial statements set out on page 7-19, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on December 17, 2020, and were signed on its behalf by:                                      Approval of financial statements
Patrick Setsiba (Chairman)  Mpho Motlhasedi (Treasurer)Non-executive Non-executiveThursday, December 17, 2020   Thursday, December 17, 2020

Directors' Report
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Opinion:We have audited the financial statements of COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA set out on 7 to 19, which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Other information:The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors' Report as required by the Companies Act, which we obtained prior to 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA as at June 30, 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium‑sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act.Basis for opinion:We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B) (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Botswana. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditors Report
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the date of this report. Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium‑sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements:
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements:Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: • Ident i fy  and assess the r isks of  mater ia l   misstatement of the financial statements, whether   due to fraud or error, design and perform audit   procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain   audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to   p r o v i d e  a  b a s i s  f o r  o u r  o p i n i o n .  T h e   risk of not detecting a material misstatement  resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting   from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,   intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the   override of internal control. • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant   to the audit in order to design audit procedures that   are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the   purpose of  expressing an opinion on the 

Directors' Report
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 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting   pol ic ies used and the reasonableness of   accounting estimates and related disclosures   made by the directors. • Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors'   use of the going concern basis of accounting and   based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a   material uncertainty exists related to events or   conditions that may cast significant doubt on the   company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If   we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we   are required to draw attention in our auditor's report   to the related disclosures in the financial   statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,   to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based   on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of   our auditor's report. However, future events or   conditions may cause the company to cease to   continue as a going concern. • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and   content of the financial statements, including the   disclosures, and whether the financial statements   represent the underlying transactions and events in   a manner that achieves fair presentation.We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

  effectiveness of the company’s internal control.
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Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2020
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Statement of Changes in Equity
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Statement of Cash Flows
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1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies:The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium‑sized Entities1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies, and the Companies Act. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for biological assets at fair value less point of sale costs, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Pula.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are expected to be used for more than one period.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty:Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, which would significantly affect the financial statements.1.2 Property, plant and equipment:
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Accounting Policies(Registration number: BW00000230497) Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA
Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. Property, plant and equipment  is  subsequent ly  stated at  cost  less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the company. The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment have changed since the most recent annual reporting date, they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.
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At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.1.4 Leases.

1.3 Financial instruments (continued):Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.Financial instruments at amortised costThese include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are operating leases.1.4 Finance leases – lessee:

Accounting PoliciesFinancial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA(Registration number: BW00000230497) 
minimum lease payments. The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability using the effective interest method.Operating leases - lessor:Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless: •  another systematic basis is representative of   the time pattern of the benefit from the leased   asset, even if the receipt of payments is not on   that basis, or  •  the payments are structured to increase in line   with expected general inflation (based on   published indexes orstatistics) to compensate   for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost   increases.1.5 Impairment of assets:The society assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or goodwill may be impaired. If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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1.6 Share capital and equity:If the Society reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the society’s own equity instruments. Consideration paid or received shall be recognised directly in equity.Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity. Any amounts received from the issue of shares in excess of par value is classified as 'share premium' in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared.1.7 Employee benefits:

Defined benefit plans:For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.Past service costs are recognised immediately as an expense.
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss when the society is demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement.When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit obligation, the right to 

Short-term employee benefits:The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as leave pay and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Accounting Policies
COPYRIGHT SOCIETY OF BOTSWANA(Registration number: BW00000230497) Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020

reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In the statement of income and retained earnings, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

Provisions are recognised when the society has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event; it is probable that the society will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Termination benefits:Termination benefits are recognised as an expense with its resulting liability when the entity is demonstrably committed either:�  to terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or�  to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.The termination benefits are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.1.8 Provisions and contingencies:

Provision for royalties are based on the management estimates depending on payments and uncertain events.Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.              
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1.9 Revenue:Revenue is recognised to the extent that the society has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the society. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The Stage of completion is determined by surveys of work performed. When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.   Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.Royalties are recognised on the accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.Revenue income includes licence (Essential, important, incidential) fees charged for :Radio broadcasting and communication to the public based on recordings that are broadcast ,diffused or communicated to the public.
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Radio broadcast revenue is recognised in the period in which they are incurred. Radio broadcast revenue can only be invoiced once the tariff parameters can be reliably ascertained and verified and the amount of revenue can thus be measured reliably.1.10 Borrowing costs:Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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